


http://www.colfax-ca.gov/




City of Colfax 2 
City Council Minutes November 8, 2017 
 

amend the minutes, “The meeting was briefly recessed to restore order following a profane 
outburst from councilman Hesch.” 
City Clerk Cassidy explained the incident was not included in the minutes as presented because 
the conflict with a member of the audience did not affect the decision of Council. 
Councilmember Stockwin reiterated that because this was in the news it should be recorded in 
the minutes. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Stockwin, seconded by Councilmember Douglass, Council 
approved amending the minutes of the October 25, 2017 meeting as suggested. 
AYES:  Douglass, Mendoza, Stockwin 
NOES:  Harvey 
ABSENT: Hesch 
 

Item 3B. Hach Contract Renewal 
Councilmember Stockwin requested staff spell out the meaning of all acronyms when they are 
introduced in staff reports.  
Interim City Manager Heathcock stated spelling acronyms has been the standard practice for 
staff reports, so there must have simply been an oversight in this particular staff report. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Stockwin, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, Council 
adopted Resolution 48-2017 authorizing continuation of the contract with Hach Services for 
Maintenance of the UVAS sensor and Wastewater Treatment Plant supplies for 2018. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
ABSENT: Hesch 
 

3 PUBLIC COMMENT 

Foxey McCleary, 127 Saunders Lane 
¶ Ms. McCleary announced the VFW will hold a ceremony in September 2018 since 

the Veteran’s Day event for 2017 was cancelled. 
Larry Hillberg, 255 J Street 
¶ Mr. Hillberg stated the words people use make a difference in people’s attitude.  

Homeless people are sometimes referred to as transients.  Most of the homeless in 
Colfax are not transient –not just passing through the area – they are homegrown.  
‘Transient’ implies we have no obligation to assist the homeless because they 
won’t be here long.  Since the homeless aren’t here temporarily we should use the 
correct term.  

Bill Roach, Humane society 
¶ Mr. Roach stated he is a new representative in the area for the Humane Society and 

will respond to complaints about animal abuse and neglect.  The Society can be 
reached at 916-633-8388 or broach@animalplace.com.  
 

4 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 

4A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers 
Councilmember Mendoza 
¶ Councilmember Mendoza attended the Winterfest fundraiser and the Fall Festival.  

Both were great events. 
¶ She thanked the Colfax Garden Club and public works staff for trimming the 

vegetation in the traffic islands which had been obstructing traffic visibility.   

mailto:broach@animalplace.com


City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes November 8, 2017 
 

¶ She mentioned a few residents, including Councilmember Douglass, were repairing 
the Sierra Vista Community Center roof. 

Councilmember Stockwin 
¶ Councilmember Stockwin attended the Winterfest fundraiser, and the Coffee with 

Supervisor Montgomery.  
¶ He announced the ‘Bear River’ group will be meeting in Auburn on Wednesday 

from 12:30PM-2:30PM. 
¶ He gave a seasonal update on rainfall – this season’s rainfall total is 2.3 inches. 

Councilmember Douglass 
¶ Councilmember Douglass attended the City/County Officials Dinner, the Colfax 

Elementary School Veterans Day program, the Winterfest fundraiser, and the 
Coffee with Supervisor Montgomery. 

¶ He represented the City on the Board for Pioneer Energy, the JPA which will be 
able to provide as much as 6% savings on energy bills by April 2018. 

¶ He reminded everyone the Coffee with Supervisor Montgomery is open to 
everyone with a new time – 11:00AM on the second Wednesday of the month at 
Café Luna. 

Mayor Harvey 
¶ Mayor Harvey stated the pending resignation of Mayor Pro Tem Hesch will create 

vacancies on boards and committees.  Mayor Harvey is alternate on both Placer 
County Transportation Agency and Air Quality Control boards and will begin 
attending those meetings.  He asked Councilmember Stockwin to serve on the Land 
Use/New Development Strategies Ad Hoc Committee.  Councilmember Stockwin 
agreed. 

¶ He stated he had recently learned the Sewer Lateral Ordinance may be causing 
undue hardship on property owners when it is applied to properties with a shared 
private lateral.  He would like this issue to be addressed and placed on the agenda 
to correct the problem with the ordinance.  City Attorney Cabral stated staff will 
look at the ordinance and bring it back to Council before June 2018. 
 

4B. City Operations – City Staff 
Interim City Manager Heathcock 
¶ Interim City Manager Heathcock reported the CDBG project is moving forward.  

Councilmember Douglass and a resident have offered to help with the survey.  He 
thanked Jim Bowers for his help with images to include in the packet which has 
been submitted to the federal agency. 

¶ He attended the Lioness Club meeting to discuss their plans to donate $4500 
towards the purchase of tables and barbeques for the Lion’s Club Park area.  The 
Lions Club may also participate and the City has mitigation fee funds which could 
be used if required. 

¶ The Rising Sun Pavement Project is in the design phase and should go to bid in 
February. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3 of 7



City of Colfax 4 
City Council Minutes November 8, 2017 
 

4C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 
Officer Chris Nave, California Highway Patrol Gold Run Public Information Officer 
¶ Officer Nave will be conducting a winter safety driving course in conjunction with 

Caltrans on December 3rd at the Bass Pro Shop in Rocklin to teach drivers how to 
handle ice, snow and winter storms. 

¶ Colfax High School will have an ‘Every 15 Minutes’ program which demonstrate 
the dangers of drunk-driving to students by re-enacting a fatal drunk driving 
accident.  The program is scheduled for February 15th and 16th next year. 

¶ CHP’s Toys for Kids toy drive will be underway soon. 
¶ Thanksgiving is a Maximum Enforcement Period.  Be careful during the holiday. 

Mayor Harvey mentioned the need for more signs over the I-80 pass stating the 30 mph speed 
limit during snowy conditions.  Officer Nave agreed. 
Interim City Manager Heathcock thanked Officer Nave for gathering the volunteers to help with 
putting together the bleachers at the ballpark. 

Landon Haack, Battalion Chief Colfax Fire Department, CALFire.  
¶ Chief Haack reported the new rescue vehicle is being outfitted with equipment. 
¶ The grant resolution for fire equipment has been submitted to the State. 
¶ He is coordinating with the County to include maintenance of fire trucks in our 

contract. 
Mayor Harvey asked how the process for clearing the Landfill and Wastewater Treatment Plant 
is coming.  Chief Haack explained it is a slow process and may take up to a year from the date of 
the application. 

Sergeant Ty Conners, Colfax Substation Commander Placer County Sheriff 
¶ Sergeant Conners stated he has distributed the October report regarding Colfax 

area calls for service.  Three hundred and thirty calls were from within the City 
limits. 

Frank Klein, President of the Colfax Chamber of Commerce 
¶ Mr. Klein reported the Winterfest fundraiser with wonderful food provided by Paul 

Raj and family netted $1000.   
¶ The Chamber hopes everyone will be able to come and enjoy Winterfest on 

December 9th from 4:30PM-8:30PM.  Santa will be at the Depot, the Mayor will 
light the tree, and there will be fireworks.  The Soroptomist will have their soup 
kitchen at the Sierra Vista Community Center. 

¶ Mr. Klein asked if the City would give the usual $500 in support of the event.  
Interim City Manager Heathcock stated this is in the budget and the Council 
assented to the distribution of funds. 

 

5 PUBLIC HEARING 

5A. Mitigation Impact Fees 
STAFF PRESENTATION: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 
RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct a Public Hearing, review the Annual Report, consider 
public and staff comments, accept report and adopt Resolution 50-2017:  Accepting and 
Approving the Annual AB 1600 Mitigation Fee Report and Making Findings Pursuant to 
Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 3.56 and the Mitigation Fee Act (Government Code §66000 
Et Seq). 







City of Colfax 7 
City Council Minutes November 8, 2017 
 

Mayor Harvey asked for more explanation regarding the risk to the City. 
Finance Director Van Groningen responded it is rare for the employer to end up with a deficit.  
The amount we allow for deductions can change each year.  
Sharon Conners, Milk Ranch Road resident, stated it is a standard benefit and City employees 
should have it. 
Council agreed. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Douglass, Council 
adopted 53-2017 authorizing the Interim City Manager to execute an agreement with Basic 
Pacific to administer Flexible Spending Accounts on the behalf of City Employees. 
AYES:   Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
ABSENT: Hesch 
 

7 GOOD OF THE ORDER – INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 

Councilmember Douglass confirmed this will be the last meeting in November and the next 
meeting will be December 13, 2017. 
 

8 ADJOURNMENT 
 

As there was no further business on the agenda, Mayor Harvey adjourned the meeting at 8:19PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 13th day of December, 2017 
 





¶ Expenses for October included: 
o Annual payment on loan with State Water Board - $438K 

o Final payment on new Fire Rescue vehicle - $122K 

o Purchase of Hot Box Trailer - $33K 

o Quarterly Workers Compensation premiums - $14K 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs 
a. Cash Analysis ς Balance 
b. Expenses by Month 
c. Revenues by Month 

2. Cash Activity Reports  
a. Cash Summary 
b. Cash Transactions Report ς by individual fund 
c. Check Register Report  - Accounts Payable 
d. Daily Cash Summary Report (Cash Receipts) 



















11 of 11



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 

FOR THE DECEMBER 13, 2017 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Alfred “Mick” Cabral, City Attorney 

PREPARED BY: Alfred “Mick” Cabral, City Attorney 

DATE: December 13, 2017 

SUBJECT: Draft Proposed City Manager Contract 
 

 N/A  X FUNDED   
UN-

FUNDED 
AMOUNT:  As determined by City Council and 
to be included in the 2017/2018 City Budget 

FROM FUND:  
Multiple 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Review the proposed draft city manager contract, receive any public comment, 
amend as appropriate, and adopt Resolution 54-2017 authorizing the execution of an employment 
agreement with Wes Heathcock to serve as Colfax City Manager. 

 
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY: 
 
Wes Heathcock was hired as Interim City Manager effective July 12, 2017.  This was a six-month assignment 
while the City Council determined whether to conduct an open recruitment to fill the permanent City 
Manager position or appoint Mr. Heathcock to that position. The interim appointment expires on 
December 31, 2017 or when the permanent replacement is appointed, whichever occurs first.  
 
Mr. Heathcock’s employment agreement requires the Council to review his performance as close as 
reasonably possible to December 31, 2017. It is anticipated that the Council will decide to either conduct an 
open recruitment or appoint Mr. Heathcock to the City Manager position once that review is completed.  
 
The City Manager is an “executive” for purposes of the Brown Act. Accordingly, the Council is required to 
report a summary of a recommendation on his proposed salary and compensation in the form of fringe 
benefits before voting to approve the City Manager’s proposed employment agreement.  
 
Staff is available to answer any questions the Council may have.  
 

 
Attachment: 
 Resolution 54-2017 
 Draft City Manager Employment Contract 

 

 

 









3 

 

B. Unless the City Manager is terminated for Good Cause as defined below, then upon 

termination by the City of City Managerôs employment, the City shall pay the City Manager 

his accrued but unpaid salary and his accrued but unpaid vacation in addition to the amounts 

payable to the City Manager under this Agreement. In addition thereto, if this Agreement is 

terminated by the City without Good Cause prior to December 13, 2019, then upon the 

effective date of termination, the City shall pay City Manager an amount equal to two months 

of gross pay as severance compensation. That severance compensation shall increase by one 

month for every year of City Managerôs service as City Manager after December 13, 2019, 

up to a maximum total of four months.  All of such gross pay shall be subject to usual state 

and federal withholding.  With the exception of the foregoing, City shall not pay City 

Manager any other amounts whatsoever upon termination of City Manager's employment.  

City Manager shall not be entitled to receive any severance compensation if City Manager 

resigns his employment with City or terminates this Agreement, or if City Manager is 

terminated for Good Cause.     

 

C. (i) If the City elects to terminate this Agreement for Good Cause, it will pay City 

Manager for all earned pay and accrued, unused vacation benefits at the time it notifies City 

Manager of the termination decision, less legally required withholdings.  City Manager will 

be entitled to no pay or benefits after the date that the City notifies him that this Agreement 

and his employment by the City are being terminated for Good Cause.  If the City elects to 

terminate this Agreement with Good Cause, it will provide City Manager with a brief, written 

explanation for that decision sent to City Managerôs last known home address.  City Manager 

shall have no right to be heard publicly by the City Council prior or subsequent to a final vote 

on his termination and hereby waives any right to be heard publicly under any provision of 

the Colfax Municipal Code or otherwise.  City Manager shall have the right to meet with the 

City Council in closed session for the purpose of discussing the basis for his proposed 

termination for Good Cause prior to a final vote on his termination for Good Cause.  In order 

to exercise that right, he must provide a written request to meet in closed session to the 

Mayor of the City within fifteen days of the effective date of his termination for Good Cause.  

Failure to timely provide such written notice shall constitute a waiver of the right to be heard. 

 

(ii)  If the City Council proposes to terminate this Agreement and City Managerôs 

employment for Good Cause, the City Council may consider granting City Manager, upon 

City Managerôs written request, the opportunity to cure the proposed reason for termination 

within a thirty (30) business day period after City Manager is advised of the reason the City 

Council is considering termination of this Agreement and City Managerôs employment. 

 

(iii)  For purposes of this Section 5, ñGood Causeò includes without limitation, as determined 

in the sole discretion of the City, any of the following: (1) neglect of or failure to adequately 

perform the essential duties or functions of City Manager, (2) insubordination, (3) 

dishonesty, (4) embezzlement, (5) violation of Federal, State or local requirements pertaining 

to conflict of interest, (6) appearance of a conflict of interest, (7) conviction of a criminal act, 

other than minor traffic violations or similar offenses, which is likely to have a material 

adverse impact on the City or City Managerôs reputation,  (8) involvement in any act 

involving moral turpitude that would compromise City Managerôs effective performance as 

City Manager, (9) taking a position adverse to the interests of the City without the Cityôs 

5 of 11





5 

 

Managerôs annual salary shall increase by the increase in the Consumer Price Index (CPI), 

calculated as follows. The base for computing the annual salary adjustment is the Consumer 

Price Index, All Urban Consumers, All Items, For The San Francisco Bay Area, published by 

the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics (the ñIndexò) which is in 

effect on the Effective Date (the ñBeginning Indexò). The Index published most immediately 

preceding the Adjustment Date in question (ñExtension Indexò) is to be used in determining 

the amount of the adjustment.  If the Extension has increased over the Beginning Index, the 

increase in the City Managerôs salary shall be set by multiplying the City Managerôs gross 

annual salary immediately prior to the Adjustment Date by a fraction, the numerator of which 

is the Extension Index and the denominator of which is the Beginning Index. In no case shall 

the City Managerôs salary be decreased.  If the CPI is discontinued by the Bureau of Labor 

Statistics, the Index designated by the Bureau of Labor Statistics as replacing the CPI shall be 

used. The CPI increase provided for in this paragraph shall be in addition to any other salary 

or benefit increase the City Council may authorize.   

 

Section 8. Benefits.  

 

During the term of this Agreement and his employment hereunder, City Manager shall be 

entitled to receive the following benefits on the same terms and conditions as other City 

department heads: 

 

A. Vacation: City Manager shall accrue vacation at the rate specified in the Cityôs adopted 

Employee Handbook based on City Managerôs original hire date by the City of August 17, 

2015.  

 

B. Holidays: City Manager shall be entitled to holidays and holiday pay consistent with the 

Cityôs adopted Employee Handbook.  

 

C. Sick Leave: City Manager shall accrue sick leave at the rate specified in the Cityôs adopted 

employee Handbook. 

 

D. Bereavement Leave: City Manager shall be entitled to bereavement leave consistent with the 

Cityôs adopted Employee Handbook. 

 

E. Health Plan: City Manager and City Manager's qualified dependents shall be eligible to 

participate in City's sponsored health plan consistent with the Cityôs adopted Employee 

Handbook as it pertains to exempt employees.  Any and all monthly premium payments 

payable by City Manager may, at City Managerôs discretion, be deducted from the City 

Managerôs paycheck as a pre-tax deduction as allowed by applicable law.  City Manager 

shall be permitted, at City Manager's election, to receive $800 per month in lieu of medical 

insurance which can be paid directly to City Manager or deposited into one of the Cityôs 

qualified plans for City Managerôs benefit.  

 

F. Pension: On the same basis as other department heads employed by the City, which is 

currently the California Public Employeeôs Retirement System (CalPERS) 2% at 60. 

 









9 

 

Section 19. Severability.  

 

If any provision or portion of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable, this 

Agreement, including all of the remaining terms, will remain in full force and effect as if such 

invalid or unenforceable provision(s) or portion(s) had never been included. 

 

Section 20. Notices.  

 

Notices pursuant to this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be deemed given when 

personally served upon the person to whom addressed or when mailed by certified or registered 

mail and deposited with the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid and addressed as 

follows: 

 

City:  Mayor, City of Colfax 

  P.O. Box 702 

  33 S. Main Street 

  Colfax, CA  95713 

 

City Manager: Wes Heathcock   

  Colfax City Hall 

  P.O. Box 702 

  Colfax, CA 95713  

 

Section 21.  Modification.  

 

This Agreement may only be modified in a writing signed by the City and the City Manager. 

 

Section 22. Entire Agreement. 

  

This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral or in writing, and contains 

all agreements between City Manager and the City regarding his employment as City Manager.  

City Manager and the City agree that no representations, inducements, promises or agreements, 

oral or otherwise, have been made to either party, or anyone acting on behalf of either party, 

which are not stated herein, and that no agreement, statement, or promise not contained in this 

Agreement will be valid or binding on either party. 
  

 

__________________ 
 

____________________ 

Stephen L. Harvey Wes Heathcock 

Mayor, City of Colfax City Manager 
 

 
 

Approved as to form: Attest: 
 

__________________ 
 
_______________________ 

Alfred A. Cabral Lorraine Cassidy 

City Attorney City Clerk 
 



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE DECEMBER 13, 2017 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, Interim City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: December 1, 2017 
SUBJECT: City of Colfax –Unfunded Pension Liability 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and direct staff as appropriate 

 

SUMMARY: 
Public pensions are a hot topic of public discussion and the media, particularly concerns over the cost to fund 
current and future pension obligations.  The City of Colfax strives to be proactive in this regard. Staff has 
completed an updated analysis of our unfunded pension liability and is providing a report of the findings and 
discussion of options available to the City. 
 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
The City of Colfax provides a defined pension benefit to its employees and participates in the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) to manage and administer the program.  Due to our small size of less 
than 100 employees, we are mandated to participate in a miscellaneous risk pool.  Risk sharing pools 
dramatically reduce or eliminate large fluctuations in an employer’s retirement contribution rate caused by 
unexpected demographic events.  In May 2014, the CalPERS Board approved a change to combine all existing 
pools into two pools, one for all miscellaneous groups and one for all safety groups. 
 

The City contracted with CalPERS in April of 2008.  The City has two benefit formulas/plans, both of which are 
part of the miscellaneous risk pool: 
 

1. Classic employees – 2% at 60 
2. PEPRA employees – 2% at 62  
 

Note:  ¢ƘŜ /ŀƭƛŦƻǊƴƛŀ tǳōƭƛŎ 9ƳǇƭƻȅŜŜǎΩ tŜƴǎƛƻƴ wŜŦƻǊƳ !Ŏǘ όPEPRA) employees are those hired and are new 
to CalPERS on or after January 1, 2013. 

 

City employees vest in the program after five years of service.  The City makes required employer contributions 
each pay period as a percentage of employee salaries and an annual payment (dollar amount) towards our 
unfunded liability. The employee contribution is 7% of salary and is deducted each pay period. 
 

The City receives two actuarial reports for its plans: 
1. Annual Actuarial Valuation - Determines City specific minimum employer contributions and annual 

employer payments toward unfunded liability, and 
2. GASB68 Accounting Valuation Report - Provides risk pool information required for financial reporting. 

 

 







CalPERS Actuarial Valuation Report 6/30/2011 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2019 6/30/2020 6/30/2021 6/30/2022

Present Value of Projected Benefits (PVB) 622,469$  677,023$  754,677$  886,565$  782,487$  1,239,628$  

Entry Age Normal Accured Liability 214,079$  222,104$  304,624$  362,938$  411,729$  567,796$      

Plan's Market Value of Assets (MVA) 179,060$  177,270$  258,846$  326,698$  357,544$  470,458$      

Unfunded Liability 35,019$    44,834$    45,778$    36,240$    54,185$    97,338$        

Funded Ratio 83.6% 79.8% 85.0% 90.0% 86.7% 82.6%

Employer Contribution Rate 7.209% 8.197% 8.311% 8.486% 8.435% 7.163% 7.612% 8.099% 8.500% 9.300% 9.300% 9.300%

Employer Payment of Unfunded Liability (30 Yr) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1,729$       2,652$       4,907$       6,200$       8,000$       10,000$    

GASB 68 Accounting Valuation Report 6/30/2011 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2019 6/30/2020 6/30/2021 6/30/2022

Unfunded Liability N/A N/A N/A 57,010$    46,274$    70,056$        

CalPERS - Facts At A Glance - January 2016 6/30/2011 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2019 6/30/2020 6/30/2021 6/30/2022

Funded status of Retirement Plans (Public Agency) 74.3% 70.1% 70.5% 77.9% 74.5% 69.0%

Revised:  November 29, 2017

Projected

City of Colfax
Defined Benefit Pension Plan/CalPERS

Z:\AGENDAS\2017 Agenda\12-13-2017\CalPers Unfunded Liability\Unfunded Liability Analysis - 2017.xlsx







1 
 

Chapter 3.56 - MITIGATION IMPACT FEES  

Sections:  

3.56.010 - Findings.  

The city council of the city of Colfax does hereby find and declare as follows:  

A.  The state of California, through the enactment of Government Code Section 
66000 et seq. has, conferred upon local government units authority to adopt 
fees imposed on a specific project in connection with approval of a development 
project for the purpose of defraying all or a portion of the cost of public facilities 
related to the development project.  

B.  The imposition of mitigation impact fees is one of the preferred methods of 
ensuring that development bears a proportionate share of the cost of public 
facilities and service improvements necessary to accommodate such 
development. This must be done in order to promote and protect the public 
health, safety, and welfare.  

C.  This chapter recognizes that all new development within the city will result in 
additional growth and that such growth will place additional burdens on various 
city facilities, infrastructure, and services. This chapter further recognizes the 
types of land development that will generate impacts necessitating the 
acquisition of land and construction of public facilities and expansion of services 
and infrastructure in order to meet and accommodate them.  

D.  All land uses within the city should bear a proportionate financial burden in the 
construction and improvement of public facilities and services necessary to 
serve them.  

E.  The mitigation impact fees established by this chapter are based upon the 
costs that are generated through the need for new facilities and other capital 
acquisition costs required, incrementally, by new development within the city of 
Colfax.  

F.  The fees established by this chapter do not exceed the reasonable cost of 
providing public facilities occasioned by development projects within the city of 
Colfax.  

G.  The fees established by this chapter relate rationally to the reasonable cost of 
providing public facilities occasioned by development projects within the city of 
Colfax.  

H.  The fees established by this chapter are consistent with the goals and 
objectives of the city's General Plan and are designed to mitigate the impacts 
caused by new development throughout the city. Mitigation impact fees are 
necessary in order to finance the required facilities and service improvements 
and to pay for new development's fair share of their construction costs.  

(Ord. 488 § 1 (part), 2007) 

3 of 11





3 
 

For each mitigation impact fee hereby established, the city council shall, by 
resolution: establish the specific amount of the fee; identify the purpose of the fee; 
identify the specific use to which the fee is to be put; determine how there is a 
reasonable relationship between the fee's use and the type of development project on 
which the fee is imposed; determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the 
need for the public facility and the impacts caused by the type of development project 
on which the fee is imposed; and determine how there is a reasonable relationship 
between the amount of the fee and the cost of the public facility or portion of the public 
facility attributable to the development project for which the fee is imposed.  

(Ord. 488 § 1 (part), 2007) 

3.56.040 - Imposition of mitigation impact fee.  

A.  Any person who, after the effective date of the ordinance codified in this chapter, 
seeks to develop land within the city by applying for a building permit, is hereby 
required to pay the appropriate mitigation impact fees established pursuant to 
Section 3.56.030 as the same may be applicable, in the manner, amount and for the 
purposes therein referenced.  

B.  No permits or extension of permits for the activities referenced in subsection A 
shall be granted unless and until the appropriate mitigation impact fees hereby 
required have been paid to the city.  

(Ord. 488 § 1 (part), 2007) 

3.56.050 - Creation of special funds.  

Each fee collected pursuant to this chapter shall be deposited in a special fund 
created to hold the revenue generated by each such fee. Monies within each such fund 
may be expended only by appropriation by the city council for specific projects that are 
of the same category as that for which the money was collected. In this regard, the 
following special funds are hereby created and established for the purpose indicated:  

A.  A Roads Fund is hereby established. The Roads Fund is a fund for payment of 
the actual or estimated costs of constructing and improving roads and 
appropriate study and planning costs.  

B.  A Drainage Fund is hereby established. The Drainage Fund is a fund for 
payment of the actual or estimated costs of constructing and improving 
drainage facilities and appropriate study and planning costs.  

C.  A Drainage c. with E-W Culverts Fund is hereby established. The Drainage c. 
E-W Culverts Fund is a fund for payment of the actual or estimated costs of 
constructing and improving drainage facilities in that area of the city requiring 
the construction/upgrade of an east west culvert including appropriate study 
and planning costs.  





5 
 

3.56.070 - Fee payment.  

The fees established pursuant to this chapter shall be paid for the property on which 
a development project is proposed at the time of the issuance of any required building 
permit, except as otherwise provided below. Provided, however, that fees imposed on 
residential development shall be collected in accordance with the provisions of 
California Government Code Section 66007, as the same presently exists or may 
hereafter be amended from time to time.  

All fees collected shall be promptly transferred or deposited into the appropriate 
funds referenced in Section 3.56.050.  

(Ord. 488 § 1 (part), 2007) 

3.56.080 - Use of funds.  

A.  Funds collected from mitigation impact fees shall be used for the purpose of: 1) 
paying the cost of development and administration of the impact fee program, 2) 
paying the actual or estimated costs of construction and/or improving the public 
facilities within the city to which said specific fee or fees relate, including any 
required acquisition of land or rights-of-way therefore; 3) reimbursing the city for the 
development's share of those public facilities already constructed by the city or to 
reimburse the city for costs advanced, including without limitation, administrative 
costs incurred with respect to a specific public facility project; or 4) reimbursing 
other developers who have constructed public facilities described in the resolution 
adopted pursuant to Section 3.56.030, where those facilities were beyond that 
needed to mitigate the impact of said developer's project or projects.  

B.  In the event that bonds or similar debt instruments are issued for advanced 
provision of public facilities for which mitigation impact fees may be expended, 
impact fees may be used to pay debt service on such bonds or similar debt 
instruments to the extent that the facilities provided are of the type to which the fees 
involved relate.  

C.  Funds may be used to provide refunds as described in Section 3.56.090.  

(Ord. 488 § 1 (part), 2007) 

3.56.090 - Refund of fees paid.  

If a building permit expires without commencement of construction, then the fee 
payer shall be entitled to a refund, without interest, of the impact fee paid as a condition 
for its issuance, except that the city shall retain one percent of the fee to offset a portion 
of the costs of collection and refund. The fee payer must submit an application for such 
a refund to the city clerk within thirty (30) calendar days of the expiration of the permit. 
Failure to timely submit the required application for refund shall constitute a waiver of 
any right to the refund.  

7 of 11







8 
 

(Ord. 488 § 1 (part), 2007) 

3.56.120 - Review.  

A.  Except for the first year this chapter is in effect, no later than one hundred and 
eighty (180) days following the end of each fiscal year, the finance director shall 
prepare a report for the city council identifying the balance of fees in the various 
funds established pursuant to Section 3.56.050, the facilities constructed, and the 
facilities to be constructed.  

B.  At a noticed public hearing, the city council shall review the report and the 
mitigation impact fees to determine whether the fee amounts continue to be 
reasonably related to the impact of development and whether the described public 
facilities are still needed. The council may revise the mitigation impact fees to 
include additional projects not previously foreseen as being needed.  

C.  The report prepared by the finance director and its review by the city council, as 
well as any findings thereon, shall be subject to the provisions of California 
Government Code Section 66001(d), to the extent applicable (which shall be 
controlling in the event of any conflict).  

(Ord. 488 § 1 (part), 2007) 

3.56.130 - Controlling state law.  

The provisions of this chapter and any resolution adopted pursuant hereto, shall at 
all times be subject and subordinate to the provisions of Chapter 5 (commencing with 
Section 66000), Division 1, of Title 7 of the California Government Code, as the same 
presently exist or may hereafter be amended from time to time, to the extent the same 
are applicable. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this chapter and 
said state law, the latter shall control.  

(Ord. 488 § 1 (part), 2007)  










	00A 171213 Agenda
	04A 171108 Minutes
	04B October Cash Summary
	2018-04 Staff Report Cash Summary Oct 2017
	October 2017 Cash Summary Data

	07A City Manager
	171204fh_Staff Report CM Agreement Aac
	Resolution 54-2017 City Manager Contract
	171205gh_Employment Agreement Clean

	07B CalPERS Unfunded Liability
	2017-12-13 Staff Report CalPERS 
	Unfunded Liability Analysis - 2017

	07C Mitgation Fees
	2017-12-13 Staff Report Mitigation Fees 
	Chapter_3.56___MITIGATION_IMPACT_FEES
	Mitigation Fees - % Analysis - June 2017

	07D  Mayor Rotation



